
 

 
 
 

         SOUL GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 
                             SOUL Theater 

         2336 Calaveras Street 
       Fresno, CA 93721 

      Tuesday, April 8, 2025 
    8:30 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 

  Presenter   Motion Page 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Dr. Terry Allen   

2. COMMUNITY ACTION PROMISE Dr. Terry Allen  1 

3. ROLL CALL Commissioner Rodgers   

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
March 11, 2025  

Dr. Terry Allen Approve 2 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Council on items within 
jurisdiction but not on the agenda. Comments are limited to three minutes). 
 

6. SOUL’s INSTRUCTIONAL CONTINUITY PLAN  
 

Dr.Varnado Approve 4 

7. SOUL UPDATE: PRINCIPAL REPORT 
 

Dr.Varnado Information 39 

8. OTHER BUSINESS                                                    Dr. Terry Allen   
• The next Governing Council meeting is scheduled for May 6, 2025.  

  
9. ADJOURNMENT 



                                                                                                                                            
1 

Community Action Promise 

Community Action changes people’s lives, embodies the spirit of hope, improves  
communities, and makes America a better place to live.  

We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to helping people  
help themselves and each other. 



2 
 

FRESNO EOC SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING 
GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

Sanctuary Stage Theater 
Tuesday, March 11, 2025 

                 MINUTES 
 
1.   Meeting called to order by Terry Allen 8:35 a.m.  
 
2.   Community Action Promise 
      Terry Allen guided the Governing Council in reading the Community Action Promise. 
        
3.   Roll call facilitated by Jimi Rodgers. 

 
4.   Approval of Minutes  
      February 4, 2025, Governing Council Meeting Minutes  
      February 27, 2025, Governing Council Special Meeting Minutes 
       
      Public Comments: None heard. 
      
      Motion by: McAllister Second by: Washington 

Ayes: Griffin, Lomelino, Allen, Rodgers, Starks, Luttrell, Overton, Salinas 
      Nays: None 
  
5.   School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
      Sandy Lomelino presented the SARC through a power point presentation.  The SARC is a comprehensive report that contains 

information about the condition and performance of each California public school.  Under control of the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF) and through the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) each public school describes how they intend to 
meet annual school specific goals.  Council members discussed the information in the report.  

 
      Public Comments: None heard. 
      
      Motion by Starks Second by: : McAllister 

Ayes: Griffin, Lomelino, Allen, Rodgers, Washington, Luttrell, Overton, Salinas 
      Nays: None 
 
6.   May Governing Council Meeting Date Change 
      Sandy Lomelino presented the Meeting Date Change for May.  Changing the May Governing Council Meeting date from May 

20, 2025, to May 6, 2025, will allow SOUL to present the necessary end of school year approval items to Fresno EOC SOUL 
Board. 

 

Voting Members 

Pr
es

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

Ab
se

nt
 Staff 

Pr
es

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

Ab
se

nt
 Non-Voting  

Member Pr
es

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

Ab
se

nt
 Guests 

 
Terry Allen, Ed.D., Chair, Retired Teacher Representative X   Jack Lazzarini X   Felicia Olais  X   

Benita Washington, Vice Chair,  
FSU Social Worker Representative  

X   Bian Angus  X  Dr. Sean 
Virnig 

X    

Jimi Rodgers, Secretary, Fresno EOC Commissioner X            

Larry Metzler, Cultural Arts Rotary Interact Club Advisor   X          

Bruce McAlister, Fresno EOC Commissioner X            

Jeanne Starks, Retired Law Enforcement Juvenile 
Probation  

X            

Julio Romero, EOC Health Services/ David Beale   X          

Debra McKenzie, Fresno EOC Commissioner   X          

Patrick Turner, Fresno EOC Training and Employment   X          

Parent Rep Lucy Luttrell   X            

Student Rep’s (2) Halle Overton, Sandra Salinas 
Alternate Student Rep   

X 
X 

           

Dion Varnado, Staff Representative, Principal   X           

Rena Failla, Staff Representative, Guidance Coordinator   X           

Courtney Griffin, Staff Representative, Guidance Dean X             

Sandy Lomelino, Staff Representative, Vice Principal X            



3 
 

       Public Comments: None heard. 
 
       Motion by Rodgers Second by: Starks 

Ayes: Griffin, Lomelino, Allen, McAllister, Washington, Luttrell, Overton, Salinas 
       Nays: None 
 
 7.   SOUL Dashboard  
       Sandy Lomelino provided an update on SOUL’s Dashboard.  The information presented delineates student demographics, 
       various data, enrollment, services provided, and the geographic areas being served in both the classroom-based and    

Individualized learning programs at SOUL   
 
8.    SOUL Update: Principal Report 
        Sandy Lomelino reported on the classroom-based and individualized learning program demographics as presented in the 

principal’s report.     
 On March 20, 2025, SOUL will host an Awards Assembly and Celebration Dinner for our students and their parents from 

3:30 – 6:30 pm.  The parents will have an opportunity to meet with the teachers, take a survey and provide input for our 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
 

9.   Other Business 
      Terry Allen announced that the next Governing Council meeting will be held, Tuesday, April 8, 2025. 

 
 10. Adjournment of Meeting 
       Meeting adjourned at 9:04 am 
 
 
 
 
 

    Submitted by Commissioner Jimi Rodgers, SOUL Governing Council Secretary 
 



 

4 
 

 
 
                   SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
Recommended Action  
  
Staff recommends Governing Council approval of SOUL’s Instructional Continuity Plan to be 
implemented during a natural disaster or emergency. This plan is required to be included 
with SOUL’s approved 2025-2026 Comprehensive School Safety Plan by July 1, 2025. 
 
Background  
  
Senate Bill 153, Chapter 38, Statues of 2024 has added a provision to the California 
Education Code (EC) Section 32282 requiring Local Educational Agencies (LEA) to adopt a 
plan to ensure all students can access instruction during a natural disaster or emergency. 
 
Fiscal Impact  
 
Action on this agenda item will have no fiscal impact. 

 
Conclusion  
 
If approved by the SOUL Governing Council, the above-mentioned item will be implemented 
at SOUL. If not approved SOUL will not be able to obtain a Form J-13A waiver which is a 
request for allowance of attendance due to emergency conditions.  

 
 
 

Date April 8, 2025 Program: School of Unlimited Learning  

Agenda Item #: 6 Director:  Dion Varnado 

Subject: SOUL’s Instructional Continuity Plan  
 

Officer:    Jack Lazzarini  



5 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Preparing Career Ready Graduates 

      
 

Fresno Unified School 
Comprehensive Safe School Plan 

(Education Code Section 32280-32288) 
At School of Unlimited Learning 

CDS Code 
10-62166-1030642 

From: 2025 TO 2026 
 
FUSD Core Belief: A safe learning and working environment is crucial to student learning.  
 
 
Contact Person: Courtney Griffin   
 
Position: Comprehensive Safe School Plan Coordinator 
 
 
Telephone Number: 559-500-0954    E-Mail address: courtney.griffin@fresnoeoc.org 
 



6 
 

 

 
Preparing Career Ready Graduates 
 

Fresno Unified School District 
Comprehensive Safe School Plan 

 
Board of Education 

Valerie F. Davis, Board President    Amy Xiong, Liaison 
Veva Islas, Clerk    Maria Sandoval, Liaison 

Keshia Thomas, Trustee    Jacqueline Cruz, Liaison 
Elizabeth Jonasson Rosas, Trustee    Brandalyn Hastings, Liaison 

Andy Levine, Trustee    Michele Rodriguez, Liaison 
Claudia Cazares, Trustee    Jade Johannes, Liaison    

Susan Wittrup, Trustee    Alexis Cortez Lopez, Liaison    
 
 

Interim Superintendent of Schools 
Mao Misty Her 

 
Executive Officer, Health Services, Safety and Emergency Response 

Amy Idsvoog 
 

Executive Director, Risk Management 
Stacey Sandoval 

 



7 
 

     
District Manager II 

Charlene Cardoza 
 

 
Purpose and Scope 
The Fresno Unified School District (FUSD) Comprehensive Safe School Plan (CSSP) provides guidance and direction to principals, faculty and staff who have 
emergency management responsibilities. The ERP along with the School Comprehensive Safe School Plan shall be used during an emergency incident involving a 
FUSD School facility. 
 
Key Emergency Contact 
After contacting 911, it is imperative during an emergency to contact Vanessa Ramirez, Emergency Response Manager, 559-443-9644, as quickly as possible. 
Vanessa will respond immediately and alert the appropriate members of the District Safety Team.  
 
Safe School Leadership Team (SSLT) 
Each FUSD facility and administrative site will have a Safe School Leadership Team (SSLT) to take charge of the emergency, respond effectively, protect the 
occupants of the facility and reduce the risk of physical injury, property damage and business interruption. The team consist of the Principal and/or designee, office 
manager, school nurse, SRO / Probation Officer (if applicable), certificated and classified employee. Each person has an alternate should they not be on campus. 
 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) is the system required by Government Code 8607(a) for managing response to multi-agency and multi-
jurisdiction emergencies in California. SEMS consists of five organizational levels, which are activated as necessary: Field Response, Local Government, 
Operational Area, Regional and State. 
 
The school site Safe School Leadership Team (SSLT) carries out the Field Response level of crisis and emergency management, the District School Safety Team 
functions at the Local Government level in this system. By organizing our crisis response plans according to SEMS, both school sites and the District are positioned 
to integrate services when an incident occurs on an area, regional or state level. 
By standardizing key elements of the emergency management system, SEMS is intended to: 
  Facilitate the flow of information within and between levels of the system, 
  Facilitate coordination among all responding agencies. 

Use of SEMS will improve the mobilization, deployment, utilization, tracking, and demobilization of needed mutual aid resources. Use of SEMS will reduce the 
incident of poor coordination and communications, and reduce resource ordering duplication on multi-agency and multi-jurisdiction responses. SEMS is designed to 
be flexible and adaptable to varied disasters that occur in California and to the needs of all emergency responders. 
 



8 
 

Essential Management Functions: SEMS has five essential functions adapted from Incident Command System (ICS). The Field Response uses the five primary ICS 
functions: Command, Operations, Planning/Intelligence, Logistics, and Finance/Administration.  The term management is used instead of command at all 
levels except Field Response. The titles of the other functions remain the same at all levels. 
Under the SEMS, tasks are delegated to members of the SSLT to successfully handle critical incidents. The SSLT member is then responsible for the task assigned 
and serves as the manager of the task. This type of delegation allows each manager to focus on just one or two aspects of the incident. These managers then 
provide information to the incident commander (principal) and assist them in making informed decisions. Using this organizational system during a critical incident 
creates clear communication channels that will reduce the amount of confusion and chaos.  
 
Permanently assigning specific areas of responsibility to members of the Safe School Team provides each member with the opportunity to specialize in the 
management of his/her area.  
 
The SEMS can also address the uncertainty of exactly who will be in the building during an emergency. When assigning the management of critical roles in the 
SEMS, always assign an alternate for each role to assure coverage. This may require some individuals to be responsible for more than one task if the primary 
manager were out of the building. While the SEMS identifies roles for the members of the SSLT, all school faculty members should know their specific functions 
during an emergency. Teachers with students in class will have specific functions, as will teachers not in charge of a class when an emergency occurs. It is 
imperative to emergency operations that SEMS roles and responsibilities are assigned and understood by the Safe School Leadership Team members. The Roles & 
Responsibilities outlined above in this document will also assist the Incident Commander if one or more team members/alternates are not available. City emergency 
responders use the SEMS to manage emergency events.  Because of this, a school with assigned roles for administrators and teachers will be able to work more 
efficiently with city agencies.  
 
 

1)     Child Abuse – See Board Policy 5141.4 
 

2)     Disciplinary Steps (Ed. Code 48975©, Ed. Code 35291, Ed. Code 35291.5) – See Board Policy 5131, 5131.4, 5137, 5142, 5144, 5144.1 
 

3)     Teacher Notification of Dangerous Pupils – See Board Policy 4158, 4258, 4358 
 

4)     Discrimination / Sexual Harassment – See Board Policy 4119.11, 4219.11, 4319.11, 5145.7 
 

5)     Dress Code – See Board Policy 5131, 5132, 5136 
 

6)     Hate Crime Reporting – See Board Policy 5131, 5145.9 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

         Directions 
1.  Establish: 
 

 Safe School Leadership Team 
 Safety Walk 
 Threat Assessment Team/Student Wellness Team 
 First Aid Responders 
 Pandemic Influenza Management Plan with reunification team and on campus location established for student/parent reunification. 

 
2. Complete School Safety Walk 

 
3. Stage 1 Site Evacuation maps are developed by Maintenance.  If you need to adjust your evacuation map, please notify Gregory Cortez at 

Gregory.Cortez@fresnounified.org  
  
4.    Stage 2 Off campus evacuation (map of site and plan). 
 
5. Establish: 

 2025-2026 Fire Drill Schedule – Once per month at the elementary and middle school level and three times per year at the high school. 
(before/after school, lunch, instructional time) 

 2025-2026 Lockdown drill – Four times per school year, One per quarter. – (before school, after school, lunch time and instructional time). 
 2025-2026 Earthquake Drill (Duck and Cover once a quarter at the elementary and middle school level and two times at the high school) 
 2025-2026 Reunification Drill – Two times during the school year 
 School Phone Tree 
 Visibility of staff deployment plan 

 
6. Update the templates of the plan to reflect current areas of responsibility at your site. 

 
7. Work closely with the school site council.  Remember the school site council has the responsibility of approving the final plan and must be 

involved in its development.  (SSC meeting for approval must be prior to March 1.)  Please calendar a meeting in January or February to discuss 
and approve plan. 

 
8. Submit electronically your Comprehensive Safe School Plan to Charlene.Cardoza@fresnounified.org ,Safety Manager II. Completed plans must be 

submitted no later than March 1 of the school year. 
 
 
 

mailto:Gregory.Cortez@fresnounified.org
mailto:Charlene.Cardoza@fresnounified.org


10 
 

Safe School Leadership Team 
 
Please note that the Safe School Leadership Team functions have been organized to align with the District Standardized Emergency Management System 
(SEMS) and the National Incident Management System (NIMS).  Depending on staff available, team members may serve multiple roles.  For example, the 
Principal may serve as both incident commander and Operations officers etc. 
 
In the event of an emergency, the Safe School Leadership Team should report to a designated location to oversee and provide directions during the 
emergency.  The principal and/or designee in charge are to facilitate the following: (1) secure the area, (2) check for damage, (3) assess injury situations, 
and (4) report findings to the instructional Superintendent.  Safe School Leadership Team is listed below. 
 

Safe School Leadership Team 
  Name Phone  
Incident Command Principal Dion Varnado 559-500-5076 
 1. Alternate Courtney Griffin 559-500-0954 
 2. Alternate Rena Failla 559-500-0961 
Planning/Intelligence Office Manager Marilyn Wheeler 559-500-0947 
 1. Alternate Shannon Sani 559-570-0530 
 2. Alternate Mehan Ballard 559-570-0450 
Operations Principal Dion Varnado 559-500-5076 
 1. Alternate Courtney Griffin 559-500-0954 
 2.  Alternate  Sandy Lomelino 559-500-0980 
Logistics Plant Coordinator Dion Varnado 559-500-5076 
 1. Alternate Marilyn Wheeler 559-500-0947 
 2. Alternate Rena Failla 559-500-0961 
Administration/Finance Financial Officer Leticia Rodriguez 559-263-1058 
 1. Alternate Salaam Nalia 559-263-1042 
 2. Alternate Dion Varnado 559-500-5076 
Other Guidance Counselor Coordinator Rena Failla 559-909-4649 
 1. Alternate Luis Baca 559-500-5046 
    
    
    
    



11 
 

SCHOOL SAFETY WALK 
        
After establishing your Safe School Leadership Team, the “Safety Walk” of your site must be done to 
assess safety conditions, emergency access, evacuation routes, PA system etc… This information is vital in 
the development of your Safety Plan. The “Safety Walk” should be done twice a year. Once at the start of 
the school year and once during the second semester.       
        

Exterior of School Building Checked & in 
order 

Needs 
Attention 

J-Order in 
process 

Gates - lockable x   

Fences - stable and no broken areas X   

Appropriate school zone signs in position X   

Free of graffiti X   

External utilities secured and locked X   

Roof hatches secured and locked  X   

Shrubs trimmed    X   

Doors and windows in working order and lockable from inside  X   

Outdoor lighting illuminates all areas of use during night hours X   

Exterior security cameras have clear view, no blocking from landscape, trees, etc. X   
Exterior security cameras in good working order where applicable X   

PA system in good working order and has the ability to be used outdoors ( i.e. field area) X   

Playground equipment safe and fall-protection material placed on the ground below equipment N/A   

Athletic facilities & external building are secured & illuminated at night N/A   

Dumpsters and garbage cans are secured X   

Parking lots are well-lit  X   

No parking zone within 5ft. of the building  X   

Sidewalks free from cracks and tripping hazards X   

Fields are free from potholes N/A   

Bike racks secured and placed in a locked cage N/A   

Gym bleachers are safe and in working condition N/A   

    



12 
 

Interior of School Checked & in 
order 

Needs 
Attention 

J-Order in 
process 

Doors and windows are in working order and lockable from inside X   

Exit lights in working order X   

Universal evacuation signage is posted in every room near the door and in hallways X   

The Central Monitoring Station’s number is posted in every room X   

Computer/server rooms secured and appropriately ventilated  X   

Hallways are free from obstructions (furniture, music instruments, large art displays etc.) X   

Visitor pass protocol is in effect X   

Staff wear ID badges X   

Students are issued ID badges (grades 9-12) X   

Classroom Checked & in 
order 

Needs 
Attention 

J-Order in 
process 

Classroom emergency guide is posted X   

Emergency folder is easily accessible X   

Evacuation map is posted X   

Classroom phone has the emergency phone # sticker X   

Doors and windows are lockable from the inside X   

Peepholes are installed X   

Equipment Needs Have enough Need How many? 

Vests  X     
Radios  X     
Crossing guard signs  X     
Cones for parking  X     
Caution signs  X     
Golf carts  N/A     
First aid kits  X     
Other       
        

       



13 
 

 BP 2250 Principal’s Designee     
 NOTES:     

     



14 
 

Stage One (On Campus) / Stage Two (Off Campus) Evacuation Plans 
 
Each site must have an evacuation plan that consists of two stages: 
 
Stage One Evacuation: All students and staff are evacuated from buildings and stationed at a safe location on campus. 
 
Stage Two Relocation: At the direction of the District Incident Commander, all students and staff are relocated to a determined location off campus at time of event.  
Coordinate with Transportation Department, Police and Fire Department. (Examples: gas leak, fallen aircraft.) 
 
Stage One Evacuation Plans shall be based on the current “Key Plan” maps obtained from the Department of Maintenance and Operations SharePoint page, under 
Site Key Plans. Stage Two Evacuation Plans shall be created by the Safe School Leadership and can be created on Google Earth.   
Include a map of the Stage One and Stage Two Evacuation Routes. 
 
Evacuation Plan Checklist: 

 Detailed campus diagrams that show: 
o Evacuation routes  
o Designated areas for each teacher and class 
o Areas of supervision 
o Transportation points (for both busses and autos) 
o Student Release area  
o Press area 

 Teams 
o Crisis Response Team 
o Student Release Team  
 

 Emergency cards (Always ready to be taken to student release area) 
  
 Parent/Guardian sign out log or forms 

 
 Impaired mobility list (Location of these students throughout the school day) 
 
 Classroom evacuation materials (laminated guides, “go bags”, binders or boxes that teachers will carry along with their roll books must be in a standard site 

in all classrooms.  Recommended placement to be next to the classroom exit or teachers’ desk). 
 

 Communication Plan (How teachers will communicate to the Safe School Leadership team and visa versa) 
 



15 
 

Stage 2 Evacuation (Off Campus) 
 

In the case of a Stage 2 Evacuation, Off-Campus Evacuation, all students/staff will travel to the following site and wait for instructions. 
 
SITE – Dickey Playground 
50 Calaveras St. 
Fresno, Ca. 93721 
Contact Person: Dion Varnado     Phone: 559-500-5076 
 
Secondary Alternate Site 
 
All Staff and Students 9th-12th 
Fresno EOC Early Head Start Child Development Center 
1441 E Divisadero St,  
Fresno, Ca. 93721 
                       
Ed Code 7 Delegate of Powers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fresno Unified School District 



16 
 

THREAT ASSESSMENT MANAGEMENT TEAM (TAMT) 
(Student Wellness Team) 

 
 
When a school identifies an individual or group that may pose potential harm to themselves or others, the school will convene their Threat Assessment Management 
Team (TAMT). 
 
The task of the TAMT is to assess the level of threat posed; determine what level of response the school site will initiate; what district resources may be required and 
what response may be needed.  
 
This team should work with outside agencies when making referrals under Welfare and Intuitions Code 5150. 
 
The team will oversee and document the school site’s response to threats, 5150 referrals and plan for monitoring or services that may need to occur after the crisis 
has passed.  
 
When engaged in the FUSD 5150 referral process, this team becomes a Student Wellness Team. The team may expand at that point to include other staff, parents 
or whoever else may be required to monitor the student’s well being when and if returned to school.     
 

STAFF MEMBER TITLE ALTERNATE ALTERNATE 

Dion Varnado Administrator 
 

Principal, Assistant Principal or 
Designee Sandy Lomelino 

Rena Failla Mental Health Professional 
 

School Psychologist or Student 
Assistants, (SAP) Counselor, Counselor 
Trained in Threat Assessment 

Nidia Vargas 

Courtney Griffin Law Enforcement 
 Security Staff Michael Potts 

Marilyn Wheeler Principal Secretary 
 

School Social Worker or other staff 
determined by the principal 
 

Mong Vang 

 
 
 
 
BP 2250 Principal’s Designee 
Ed Code 7 Delegate of Powers 
FIRST AID RESPONDERS 



17 
 

 
Each district site must have designated First Aid responders who are first to provide assistance when needed.  Annually, identify those staff members who have current training in CPR-First Aid-AED.  In an emergency, any staff member may 
provide assistance.  Ensure that there are an adequate number of people trained in first aid in addition to the crisis response team. 
 
The following staff members are designated emergency first aid responders for the 2025-2026 school year at  School of Unlimited Learning Charter High School. 
 

CP
R/

AE
D 

FI
RS

TA
ID

 
    

Ex
pi

ra
tio

n 

NAME TITLE Phone/Room 

   Dion Varnado Principal 559) 500-5076:  Principal’s Office  
X X 08/

26 
Sandy Lomelino Vice Principal (559) 500-0980:   

X X 08/
26 

Rena Failla Guidance Counselor Coordinator (559) 500-0961:  Guidance Counselor Coordinator’s Office  

X X 08/
26 

Courtney Griffin Guidance Dean (559) 500-0954:  Guidance Dean Office  

X X 08/
26 

Marilyn Wheeler Senior Administrative Assistant (559) 500-0947:  Administrative Assistant Office  

X X 08/
26 

Nidia Vargas College and Career Advisor (559) 549-9011:  Career Center Office  

   Kienan Clewis Teacher (559) 500-5049:   
X X 08/

26 
Michael Potts School Services Technician (559)777-5593:   School Services Technician Office    

X X 08/
26 

Andrew Williams Teacher (559) 500-0981:   

X X 08/
26 

Shannon Sani Teacher (559) 500-5085:   

X X 08/
26 

Luis Baca Teacher (559) 500-5046:   

X X 08/
26 

Michael Cantu Teacher (559) 500-5047:   

X X 08/
26 

Mong Vang Case Manager (559) 777-5719:  Case Manager Office   

X X 08/
26 

Meghan Ballard Teacher (559) 500-5057 Room 3 

X X 08/
26 

Johnny Vasquez Teacher (559) 570-0457 

X X 08/
26 

Gladys Banda ELD Coordinator (559) 777-5129:  Theater  

X X 08/
26 

Zachary Reinhold Teacher (559) 500-5001:  Room 2  

X X 08/
26 

Patricia Billeadeau Data Resource Specialist  (559) 777-7956:  Data Resource Specialist Office    

X X 08/
26 

Gloria Rodriguez Attendance Secretary/Home School Liaison (559) 570-0576:  Front Reception  

 X X 08/
26 

Carlos Custodio Building Maintenance  (559) 570-0457: On-Site 

x x 08/
26 

Martin Mendez  Teacher (559) 549-9011 



18 
 

X X 08/
26 

Susan Hernandez Registrar (559) 777-7966:  Registrar Office   

X X 08/
25 

Sean Sayles Teacher  (559) (559) 500-0914:   

   SOUL Main Number SOUL Main Office (559) 500-1352 
 
AED (Automated External Defibrillator) Maintenance Checks  
 
Please list the person(s) who will be responsible for the monthly AED maintenance check.   
 

NAME  Marilyn Wheeler TITLE  Senior Administrative Assistant 
 
First Aid Responders Coverage (for those responsible for students) 
  In the case the First Aid Responders are activated, the following staff will be responsible to cover classes for those responding. 
 

Name Title Phone/Room 
Michael Potts School Services Technician (559) 777-5593  Theater and Rec Room  
Mong Vang Case Manager (559) 777-5719  Rooms 1 and 2   
Nidia Vargas College and Career Advisor (559) 549-9011  Rooms 3 and 4 

 
 
 

Emergency First Aid Guidelines for California Schools is the guide for providing first aid. 
 
The guidelines and first aid supplies are located in the health office.  Additional supplies (red 1st aid bags) at the high schools are located in the boy’s gym, girl’s gym, and may also 
be in shop classes.   
 
The guidelines chart contains Universal Precautions for blood borne pathogens. Any time an employee is involved in a possible blood exposure incident, it shall be reported as a 
Worker’s Compensation incident.  
 

CPR PRECAUTIONS 
 
To minimize the risk of infectious disease transmission during emergency mouth-to-mouth resuscitation, mouthpieces, shields, pocket masks, or other ventilation devices shall be 
used.  Such equipment shall be stored with first aid equipment in the health office. 
 
Unless the scope of the crisis/first aid response is prohibitive, the appropriate student and/or the emergency employee accident reports are to be completed as per usual District 
policy.  



19 
 

IMMEDIATE CARE RESPONDERS 
 
Identify all persons who are trained in monitoring and providing medical care for students with significant health conditions (severe allergies, severe asthma, diabetes, 
seizures, and specialized healthcare procedures, such as catheterizations, GT feeding etc.). Staff will need to provide for the medical needs of these students if they 
remain at school for a significant amount of time. Nurse to be responsible for training designated personnel every year to monitor and provide medical care for 
students with significant health conditions. 
 
The following staff members are designated Immediate Care Responders for the 2024-2025 school year at the School of Unlimited Learning.. 
 

NAME TITLE ROOM/PHONE 

Marilyn Wheeler Senior Administrative Assistant (559) 500-0947/Secretary Office 

Sandy Lomelino Vice Principal (559) 500-0980/Vice Principal Office  

Meghan Ballard Teacher (559) 570-0450/Room 1 

 
*a confidential list of all students in the category must be kept in nurse’s office as well as with the school safety coordinator. 
 
 
Each school has an Emergency First Aid Bag (for disaster only) stocked with first aid supplies. High schools have two bags. The “Emergency First Aid Guidelines for 
California Schools” and the Emergency Bags are located in the health office (high schools should store the second bag in the gym or shop areas or in the Safety 
Coordinators office. 
 
Communication 
 
List the modes of communicating with your staff in the case of a crisis. 
 
Primary: In Person 
 
Alternate: By Phone 
 
Alternate: By Email 
 
 



20 
 

Fresno Unified School District 
Pandemic Influenza Management Plan 

 
 
The Fresno Unified School District Pandemic Influenza Management Plan consists of several components including the Fresno Unified School 
District Comprehensive Safe School Plan, Appendixes, Emergency Support Functions, Support Annexes, and Incident Annexes.  The Pandemic 
Influenza Management Plan is one of several Incident Annexes and therefore serves to augment the FUSD Comprehensive Safe School Plan and 
other components.  To ensure efficient and effective emergency management, the FUSD Pandemic Influenza Management Plan document must be 
implemented in its entirety.     

PHASES OF A PANDEMIC 
 
The World Health Organization (WHO), the medical arm of the United Nations, has developed a global influenza preparedness plan that includes a 
classification system for guiding planning and response activities for an influenza pandemic.  This classification system is comprised of six phases of 
increasing public health risk associated with the emergence and spread of a new influenza virus subtype that may lead to a pandemic.  The Director 
General of WHO formally declares the current global pandemic phase and adjusts the phase level to correspond with pandemic conditions around the 
world.  For each phase, the global influenza preparedness plan identifies response measures WHO will take and recommends actions that countries 
around the world should implement.   
 

Pandemic Phases 
 

Public Health Goals Fresno Unified School District Goals 

Interpandemic Period 
 
Phase 1 – No new influenza virus subtypes detected in 
humans.  An influenza virus subtype that has caused 
human infection may be present in animals.  If present 
in animals, the risk of human infection or disease is 
considered low. 
 
Phase 2 – No new influenza virus subtypes detected in 
humans.  However, a circulating animal influenza virus 
subtype poses substantial risk of human disease. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Strengthen influenza pandemic 
preparedness at all levels.  Closely monitor 
human and animal surveillance data. 
 
 
 
Minimize the risk of transmission to 
humans; detect and report such 
transmission rapidly if it occurs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Ensure that staff members and students are trained in 
preventative measures such as respiratory etiquette and 
universal precautions. 
 
 
Minimize the risk of transmission to humans; ensure that staff 
members understand detection and reporting guidelines and report 
rapidly as required. 



21 
 

 
 
 

 

Pandemic Phases 
 

Public Health Goals Fresno Unified School District Goals 

Pandemic Alert Period 
 
Phase 3 – Human infection(s) are occurring with a new 
subtype, but no human-to-human spread, or at most 
rare instances of spread to a close contact. 
 
Phase 4 – Small cluster(s) of human infection with 
limited human-to-human transmission but spread is 
highly localized suggesting that the virus is not well 
adapted to humans. 
 
 
Phase 5 – Larger cluster(s) of human infection but 
human-to-human spread is localized, suggesting that 
the virus is becoming increasingly better adapted to 
humans, but may not yet be fully transmissible 
(substantial pandemic risk). 
 

 
 
Ensure rapid characterization of the new 
virus subtype and early detection, 
notification, and response to additional 
cases. 
 
Contain the new virus within limited foci 
or delay spread to gain time to implement 
preparedness measures, including vaccine 
development. 
 
 
Maximize efforts to contain or delay 
spread to possibly avert a pandemic, and to 
gain time to implement response measures. 

 
 
Ensure all personnel are knowledgeable about the latest 
epidemiological information.   
 
 
Review and update business continuity plans per Base Plan. 
 
Ensure that best practices for infection detection and control 
measures are followed.                 
 
Ensure adequate resources for staff/student protection. 
 
Ensure that FUSD is implementing best practice for social distancing 
techniques per LHO guidelines, including reducing the school 
activity calendar. 
 
Maximize communications with parents related to health and safety. 
 

Pandemic Period 
 
Phase 6 – Pandemic is declared.  Increased and 
sustained transmission in the general population. 
 

 
 
Implement response measures including 
social distancing to minimize pandemic 
impacts. 

 
 
Increase surveillance of staff/student health and attendance and 
implement administrative procedures to ensure adequate staffing for 
essential business and school functions.  
 
Follow LHO and FCOEDHS, social distancing, isolation, and 
quarantine measures.  
 
Ensure maximum support and education for ill and affected students.   

 
Public Employees as Emergency Disaster Workers 

 
During an emergency/crisis, the welfare of all district employees is as important as student wellbeing.  However, employees become emergency 
service workers under the Emergencies and Disasters Preparedness Plan (Government Code 3100, AR 4212) which states, ”A public employee 
becomes emergency service workers in the event of a declared emergency.  This means that all school district employees will be required to work in 
this capacity in case a disaster occurs, and a state of emergency is declared”. 



22 
 

 
If a state of emergency is declared, our employees must have a plan in place to address their personal and family needs while they are at work (during 
regular or extra duty).  Please remind your staff of their district obligations and for them to develop their person/family needs plan in the case they 
are called upon for after hour duty. 

 
1. Fresno Unified School District assumes the following responsibilities: 
 

a. Develop capabilities to implement non-medical measures to decrease the spread of disease throughout the school community as 
guided by the epidemiology of the pandemic and the Local Health Officer.  

 
b. Develop and implement pandemic preparedness activities and a business continuity plan aimed at maintaining the provision of 

educational services and limiting the spread of disease throughout the duration of a pandemic.  
 

c. Communicate with and educate the school community about approved public health practices and what each person can do to prepare 
or respond to minimize health risks. 

 
d. Develop and implement educational support plans for students who are isolated or quarantined and coordinate these plans with the 

social support plans developed by the Fresno County Department of Public Health and the Fresno County Office of Education 
Director of Health Services.   

 
e. Develop and implement support plans for Health Clinics designated to be used as “immunization clinics” or “flu clinics” to 

triage/evaluate and/or treat influenza patients not requiring hospital care. 
 
2. Each Fresno Unified School assumes the following responsibilities: 

 
a. The Principal/Designee will develop a response plan that will: 

 
 Identify chain of command in case of illness with a minimum of 2 back ups.   

 
 Review and best practices for respiratory hygiene and universal precautions.  Train all school staff, volunteers and students.  

Identify and procure needed resources.   
 

 Review procedures for sending ill individuals’ home and make adjustments if necessary. 
 

 Report the number of staff and students daily absent with pandemic flu to Vanessa Ramirez, 559-443-9644. 
 



23 
 

 Designate office staff who will document actions taken. 
 

 Working with Vanessa Ramirez, provide information to all stakeholders on the extent of infection at school site and potential 
changes that might take place at school. 

 
b. Develop a recovery plan that provides for education support and emotional support for staff and students.  If there is loss of life, 

implement procedures located in the Comprehensive Safe School Plan.   
 

 
 

PARENT REUNIFICATION TEAM 
 
Location (must be able to accommodate all parents) School Theater 
 Select an appropriate location (per safety plan or other location that may be more appropriate given size of school).  Consider entry, exit and ability to hold 

a significant number of people (e.g., multiple stations) 
 Ensure that you have all the appropriate documentation such as sign out sheets, emergency cards, reunification form, as well as office supplies such as 

pens available. 
 Post signs on tables to facilitate communications. 
 Set up a photocopier (with power), telephone (or cell phones), a laptop and printer. 
 Set up tables with appropriate signs: 

a) 2 for reunification, Team #1 (matches form to emergency card, checks schedule, calls classroom and or sends escort to the classroom) 
b) 2 for reunification of student to parent, Team #2 (Parents will sign out the release form for their child) 
c) 1 table for health services/nurse at student-parent meeting location 

 Have interpreters speaking Spanish and Hmong (hearing impaired on as-needed basis on site available to assist) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 
 

 
Please fill in your re-unification team members in the chart below assigning an emergency task from the letters (a-c) above.  Please ensure the team 
lead is a strong member of your management team. 
STAFF MEMBER ALTERNATE TITLE EMERGENCY TASK 

(list corresponding letter from 
above) 

Rena Failla Susan Hernandez Guidance Counselor 
Coordinator/Registrar a  

Sandy Lomelino Nidia Vargas  Vice Principal/College & Career Advisor b 

Marilyn Wheeler Courtney Griffin Senior Administrative 
Assistant/Guidance Dean c 

SCHOOL SITE PERSONNEL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

In the event of a major disaster, there is no guarantee that emergency medical or fire personnel will be able to immediately respond to school sites.  Therefore, the 
school staff must be prepared to ensure the care and safety of students during the first several hours after a major disaster without outside assistance.  It 
is critical to determine who does what, where, and how—before such a disaster occurs. 
 
Principal/Safe School Leadership Team 
1. Acts as the liaison between the school site and central office and maintains communication with appropriate central office staff and/or local law enforcement 

agencies, fire department, and medical assistance agencies as appropriate. 
 
2. Posts and regularly updates Safe School Leadership Team information and the emergency phone numbers, emergency first aid responders, and chemical 

inventory lists. 
 
3. Ensures Safe School Leadership Team members are knowledgeable of location of shut-off valves and how to turn them off.  Do not attempt to turn utilities 

back on yourself. 
 
4. Ensures that all staff are trained to carry out responsibilities during disaster and drill procedures; encourages teachers to work in teams through a buddy system. 
 
5. Establishes a communications system consisting of the following elements: 
 

a. System of specific disaster warning signals that are well known to staff and students and includes both bell and voice signals. 
b. Alternate system for written communication with staff in the event voice-to-voice communication is not available. 
c. Designate and enforce exclusive use of a telephone line and number to be used only by the Principal (or authorized person) and the Superintendent (or 

designee). 



25 
 

d. A communication Center in a location accessible to parents, interested community members, and media to handle inquiries, rumor control, and information in 
an orderly fashion.   
 
The following guidelines should be adhered to: 
 Include a sign-in sheet for all media to complete.  (PC 627.2) 
 Notify the Central Monitoring Station at 73831 (or 457-3831 from an outside line) of the emergency and media response. Notify Vanessa Ramirez, at 

443-9644 who will notify the Instructional Superintendent(s) and the Emergency Planning Manager. 
 Follow the directions of the Instructional Superintendent. Only the Superintendent or designee and Vanessa Ramirez, Emergency Response Manager, or 

designee is authorized to release information.  All other personnel should cordially refer the media to the Communications Office (457-3733). 
 Designate a person to record incidents for documentation purposes including debriefing.  
 

6. Ensure that the emergency phones are in working order and that precautions are taken to keep that number private. 
 
7. Ensures that each classroom or homeroom maintains a current emergency card system for every student (i.e., copies of emergency card or other effective 

system, which summarizes the information on the emergency card). (See Student Release Team page) 
 
8. Establishes a student release system that will facilitate an organized method to release individual students to authorized adults only. 
 
9. Assigns the following duties to school staff: 

a. Patrol entrances to direct emergency personnel, parents, district staff, and media to appropriate areas, and prohibit unauthorized persons from entering 
campus. 

b. Monitor/supervise halls and corridors to maintain a safe and secure environment. 
c. Conduct search-and-rescue operations to systematically search every room to locate trapped/injured persons and to recover critical supplies and equipment. 
d. Establish/coordinate Communication Center. 
e. Administer first aid. 
f. Work with emergency medical triage teams to identify injured students and staff and to record ambulance destinations. 
g. Supervise Student Release Procedures. 
h. Check building utility systems and appliances for damage. 
 

10. Schedules regular emergency drills and reviews the emergency plan with staff, students, and parents and to schedule regular site inspections for safety hazards. 
 
11. Plans alternate classroom evacuation routes if standard routes are obstructed. 
 
12. Ensures that other personnel who provide services to students and staff are aware of emergency procedures. 
 
13. Reviews and updates the site-level plan annually, with particular attention to the unique characteristics of the site. 



26 
 

 
14. Inform any satellite programs (on or adjacent to your site) of the emergency immediately. (Example: Parenting Center, Pre-school, Special Needs Program). 
 
 
PC 627.2 Registration by Outsider 
Ed Code 32211 Threatened disruption/interference with students 
BP 1112(a) CF Visits to Schools 

 
 

Per Board Policy 6114.1 The principal shall also hold fire drills at least once a month at the elementary and intermediate level, and not less than three 
times every school year at the secondary level. (At least one drill during the time of: before/after school, lunch, instructional time). 

2025-2026 Fire Drill Schedule 
Month Date Time    
July      
August      
September      
October October 16, 2025 11:00 a.m. (Instructional Time)    
November      
December      
January January 29, 2026 12:30 p.m. (Lunch)    
February       
March        
April April 23, 2026 3:15 p.m. After School    
May      
June      

 
2025-2026 Lockdown Drill Schedule / 4 Drills for the School Year 

 
Semester Date Time    
Before School September 18, 2025 7:15 a.m.    
Lunch November 27, 2025 12:15 p.m.    
Instructional Time February 26, 2026 11:55 a.m.    
After School April 23 2026 2:30 p.m.    

 
2025-2026 Earthquake Drill Schedule 



27 
 

Per AR 3516.3 Drop, Cover and Hold procedures shall be practiced at least once each school quarter in elementary schools and at least once each 
semester in secondary schools. (Education Code 32282) 

Date  Time   
October 2025 – Great California Shake Out  October 16, 2025   10:16 a.m..   

2025–2026 Reunification Drill 
 

First Semester Date Time    
 November 6, 2025 12:15 p.m.    
Second Semester Date Time    
 February 5, 2026 2:40 p.m.    

 
As soon as the drill is completed fill out the Drill Reporting Template that has been sent out to the Safety Coordinator for your site. 

 
Imminent Danger / Lockdown Procedure / RUN-HIDE-FIGHT 

 
An extreme emergency exists when one or more of the following situations occur on campus: (1) drive-by shooting/show-by, (2) armed intruder/assailant on campus, 
(3) mass protest, or (4) helicopter searches or SWAT team operations.  

1. Imminent Danger Signal – A verbal Lockdown call will be made over the PA system and over the two-way radios to signal staff to lock down. Remember, 
RUN-HIDE-FIGHT in the event of an Active Assailant. RUN: If a safe path is available. HIDE: If you cannot get out safely. FIGHT: If your life is in danger. 
An announcement over the PA System will be made to indicate when the lockdown is lifted.  

2. The school nurse will be in charge of emergency first aid:  the library or other designated area will be utilized as a gathering place (if other than library, 
indicate gathering place: School Recreation Room   
In the nurse’s absence Marilyn Wheeler will be in charge. 

3. The Office Manager will maintain phone communication with the district office and Central Monitoring Station for internal communications. 
4. Rena Failla will serve as emergency locator to notify parents, guardians, and/or doctors of injured persons. 
5. The Principal or designee will identify a person to serve as public information contact under the direction of the District Communications Office 
6. The Plant Coordinator will be responsible for locking all lavatory doors, cafeteria doors, office doors, and gates as directed. 
7. Teachers who are unassigned should assemble in the staff lunchroom or other designated meeting room for instructions. 
8. When the imminent danger signal is given, teachers should take the following actions: 

• Proceed immediately to homerooms 
• Direct as many students as possible into rooms 
• Supervise the area outside room until students are in rooms 
• Lock doors and follow classroom emergency guide instructions 
• Students in rooms are to be seated on the floor with sign-up sheets provided so that each student accounts for his/her presence in the room 
• Notify the front office of any additional outbreaks 



28 
 

• Students are to remain in the classroom until the all-clear signal is given 
9. If gunfire is heard, everyone should be instructed to get under desks and away from windows. 
10. School staff should stay until the crisis is declared over 
 
 

State of California Government Code, 
Chapter 8, Division IV, Title I 

The State of California Government Code States: that all public employees become emergency service workers in the event of a declared emergency.  
This means that all school district employees will be required to work in this capacity in case a disaster occurs, and a state of emergency is declared. 

 
PHONE TREE 

 
Once it is verified that a crisis exists, the building administrator or designee sets the phone tree in motion.  When a crisis occurs during weekends, vacation periods, 
or when a large number of staff is away from the school, it will be necessary to transmit information via a phone tree.  At other times, when crises occur when school 
is in session, only the people outside the school building need to be contacted via telephone. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

              
 

 Susan Hernandez             Gladys Banda           Shannon Sani                 Luis Baca 
 
Mong Vang             Kienan Clewis                             Gloria Rodríguez                       Johnny Vasquez 
 
Andrew Williams            Patricia Billeadeau           Carlos Custodio                            Michael Cantu 
 
Zachary Reinhold                        Sean Sayles                      Martin Mendez                            Esperanza Trevino 

Dion Varnado 
Principal/Academic Officer 

 

Rena Failla 
Guidance 
Counselor 

Coordinator 

Sandy Lomelino 
Vice Principal 

Courtney Griffin 
Guidance Dean 

Nidia Vargas 
College and Career 

Advisor 

Michael Potts 
School Services 

Technician 

Marilyn Wheeler 
Senior Administrative 

Assistant 



29 
 

 
 

               
                         

Campus Visibility Deployment of Staff 
 

High School Campus Name Before/After School Location Lunch Location Passing Location      
Principal Dion Varnado Upstairs Near classrooms Rec Room Upstairs Classroom Area      
Guidance Dean Courtney Griffin Outside Entrance of School Recreation Room Downstairs Reception Area      
School Services Technician Michael Potts Recreation Room/Outside 

Entrance 
Recreation Room Downstairs Theater/Rec Room      

Data and Resource Specialist  Patricia Billeadeau Downstairs Theater Area  Outside/Back of School Downstairs Theater/Rec Room      
Guidance Counselor Coordinator Rena Failla  Recreation Room/Downstairs Recreation Room Upstairs Classroom Area      
Case Manager Mong Vang Outside Entrance of School Recreation Room Upstairs Classroom Area      
College and Career Advisor Nidia Vargas Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Senior Administrative Assistant Marilyn Wheeler Upstairs near classrooms Upstairs near classrooms  Upstairs Classroom Area      
ELD Coordinator Gladys Banda Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Vice Principal Sandy Lomelino Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Registrar Susan Hernandez Recreation Room Recreation Room Recreation Room      
Teacher Andrew Williams Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher Zachery Reinhold Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher Sean Sayles Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher Johnny Vasquez Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher Martin Mendez Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher Kienan Clewis Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher Michael Cantu Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher  Luis Baca Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Teacher Shannon Sani Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area Upstairs Classroom Area      
Attendance Secretary/Home 
School Liaison 

Gloria Rodriguez Downstairs Reception Area Downstairs Reception Area Downstairs Reception Area      

Maintenance Carlos Custodio School Grounds School Grounds School Grounds      

 
 
 

 
 



Recommendations and Assurances 

The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this Comprehensive School Safety plan to the district governing board for approval, and assures the board of the following: 

1. The School Site Council is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law.

2. Under California Education Code 32281, the School Site Council or its delegates formed a school safety planning committee with the minimum of the following members:

• The principal or the principal's designee
• One teacher who is a representative of the recognized certificated employee organization
• One parent whose child attends the school
• One classified employee who is a representative of the recognized classified employee organization
• Other members, if desired

3. The School Site Council reviewed the content-of the Comprehensive Safe School Plan and believes all requirements as outlined in the Fresno Unified School District Comprehensive Safe
School Plan template have been met. 

4. This school plan was adopted by the school site council on: [t-Otl.Ltkt" (A) L/ . ;;l,Oc)5 

Attested: 

Dion Varnado £J. D
School Principal 

Terry Allen, Ed.D 
Governing Council Chair 

30 

Date 

Date 



31 
 

School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL) 

Instructional Continuity Plan  

Purpose: 
The Instructional Continuity Plan (ICP) ensures that in the event of an emergency or disruption 
(e.g., natural disasters, public health emergencies, or other unforeseen events), the educational 
experience for students can continue without significant interruption. The plan outlines 
procedures to ensure that learning remains consistent, equitable, and accessible for all students. 

 

1. Overview and Objectives: 

• Mission Statement: 
To provide an equitable and seamless educational experience for all students, regardless 
of circumstances, by maintaining instructional quality during times of disruption. 

• Goals: 
o Minimize disruption to student learning. 
o Ensure access to technology and digital resources for all students. 
o Maintain communication between teachers, students, and families. 
o Provide training for teachers, staff, and students on remote learning platforms. 
o Address the mental and emotional well-being of students and staff. 

 

2. Roles and Responsibilities:  

• School Leadership Team: 
o Lead the implementation of the ICP. 
o Communicate regularly with stakeholders (teachers, students, families, local 

authorities). 
o Ensure that all legal and safety requirements are met. 
o Make decisions regarding the closure or re-opening of the school. 

• Teachers: 
o Develop and deliver lessons through remote learning platforms. 
o Utilize digital learning resources (such as Canva, Google Classroom etc.) for 

pupils to access if schools are closed. 
o Maintain regular communication with students and parents (via email, text, phone 

calls, or virtual meetings). 
o Provide feedback and assessment on student work. Check for understanding using 

strategies for formative assessment. Daily check-ins or virtual office hours to 
allow additional academic support. 

o Ensure all accommodations and individualized education plans (IEPs) are being 
considered when planning and delivering lessons. 



32 
 

o Be prepared for professional development on digital tools and instructional best 
practices. 

• Students: 
o Engage in remote or hybrid learning as directed by the school. 
o Participate in online classes, complete assignments, and communicate with 

teachers. 
• Parents/Guardians: 

o Support students in maintaining a structured learning environment at home. 
o Ensure students are attending virtual classes and completing assignments. 
o Reach out to school staff for assistance when needed. 

• Technology Support Team: 
o Ensure that all digital tools (learning management systems, video conferencing 

tools, etc.) are functional and accessible. 
o Provide technical support for students, teachers, and families. 
o Ensure equity in access to devices and the internet. 

• Counseling Staff Team: 
o Providing social-emotional support for pupils during and after a natural disaster is 

crucial to help them cope with stress, trauma, and displacement. Natural disasters 
can cause significant emotional distress, especially for children, who may struggle 
to understand and process what is happening.  

 

3. Support for Pupils’ Social-Emotional and Mental Health 

• Creating a Safe, Supportive Environment 
o Physical Safety: Ensure that the physical environment is secure and comforting. This 

includes making classrooms or shelters feel as calm and welcoming as possible, with 
familiar routines and comforting items (like soft toys, blankets, or calming visuals). 

o Emotional Safety: Establish a space where pupils feel they can express their 
emotions without fear of judgment. Encourage an open-door policy for pupils to 
approach trusted adults when they feel upset. 

• Acknowledge and Validate Feelings 
o Normalize Emotions: Let pupils know that it is okay to feel sad, scared, angry, or 

confused after a natural disaster. Reassure them that their feelings are normal and 
valid, and they are not alone in feeling this way. 

o Encourage Open Expression: Give pupils opportunities to talk about their feelings. 
This can be through class discussions, one-on-one conversations, or creative outlets 
like drawing or journaling. Using art, music, or drama can be helpful for pupils who 
find it hard to express themselves verbally. 

• Provide Consistent Routines 
o Maintain Familiarity: Pupils find comfort in routine, so try to maintain as much of 

the normal school routine as possible, even if learning has to happen in a temporary 
setting or remotely. Consistent schedules and predictable activities can help them feel 
more secure. 



33 
 

o Small Goals: Help pupils set small, achievable goals to help them regain a sense of 
control, like completing a project, doing a quick exercise, or simply having a "feel-
good" task to look forward to each day. 

• Active Listening and Empathy 
o Listen Actively: Be present when pupils express their concerns or fears. Reflect on 

what they say to show that you understand and empathize. For example, "It sounds 
like you’re feeling really worried about your home. That makes sense." 

o Comfort and Reassure: Provide physical comfort (such as a comforting touch, when 
appropriate), along with verbal reassurance that it is okay to be upset and that things 
will eventually get better. 

• Promote Peer Support 
o Peer Mentoring: Encourage pupils to look out for one another. Some pupils may feel 

more comfortable talking to their peers than to adults. Encourage positive social 
interactions, teamwork, and support systems among classmates. 

o Buddy Systems: Pair pupils up with a buddy to check in on each other, helping them 
feel less isolated. 

• Address Trauma Through Age-Appropriate Conversations 
o Age-Appropriate Information: Provide pupils with information about the disaster in 

a way they can understand. Use simple, clear, and age-appropriate language to 
explain what happened, why it happened, and what steps are being taken to keep them 
safe. 

o Answer Questions: Allow pupils to ask questions and provide honest, clear, and 
reassuring answers. If you do not have an answer, let them know you will try to find 
one together. 

• Incorporate Stress-Relief Activities 
o Mindfulness and Relaxation Exercises: Help pupils manage stress by guiding them 

through breathing exercises, mindfulness practices, or short relaxation activities. 
These can help calm the body and mind and teach students strategies for handling 
anxiety. 

o Physical Activity: Encourage regular movement and physical activity to help release 
pent-up stress. This could be through games, exercises, or even simple stretching 
activities. 

•  Provide Access to Counseling Services 
o School Counselors: Will be available for one-on-one support. Counselors can 

provide tailored emotional support, offer coping strategies, and help pupils process 
trauma. 

o Community Resources: Provide families with information on local mental health 
services and counselors. Ensure that children who may need more intensive help are 
connected with appropriate support. 

• Encourage Family and Community Connection 
o Strengthen Family Bonds: Encourage pupils to talk with their families about how 

they are feeling and to lean on each other for support. Let families know about 
resources available to them, such as counseling services, community support groups, 
or help with rebuilding. 



34 
 

o Build Community Networks: Foster a sense of community by encouraging pupils 
and families to engage with one another. This could involve volunteering, local 
support networks, or simply reaching out to neighbors. 

• Follow Up and Monitor Long-Term Effects 
o Check-In Regularly: Social-emotional needs may persist even after the immediate 

impact of the disaster has passed. Continue to check in with students, especially if 
they show signs of prolonged distress, such as withdrawal, difficulty concentrating, or 
changes in behavior. 

o Reassure Over Time: Disasters can have long-term emotional effects. It is important 
to reassure pupils over time that they are safe, and that recovery is a process. Offer 
ongoing support as needed and give them opportunities to talk about their feelings 
even weeks or months after the event. 
 

 

4.  Support for Unhoused and/or Foster Youth: 

o Temporary Shelters: Ensure that emergency shelters are accessible to homeless 
individuals and foster youth, offering them a safe place to stay during the disaster. 
Special attention should be given to minors in foster care who may need a 
guardian or trusted adult. 

o Pop-Up Shelters: Organize temporary shelters in schools, community centers, or 
churches, making sure these spaces are equipped with food, hygiene products, and 
sleeping arrangements. 

o Food Drives and Distribution: Collaborate with local organizations to provide 
emergency food and clean water. Ensure that the food is nutritious and 
accommodates dietary needs (e.g., allergies, religious preferences). 

o Hygiene Kits: Distribute hygiene kits with essentials like soap, toothpaste, 
deodorant, menstrual products, and hand sanitizer. 

o Clothing and Warmth: Ensure access to clothes, blankets, and essential items 
like shoes or jackets, especially during colder seasons. 

o Counseling and Therapy Services: Offer emotional support and counseling, as 
both homeless individuals and foster youth are likely to experience trauma, 
anxiety, and stress during and after the disaster. Provide access to hotlines or in-
person mental health professionals. 

o Peer Support Groups: Set up peer support groups for foster youth, where they 
can connect with others who have similar experiences and feelings of loss or 
displacement. 

o Trauma-Informed Care: Ensure that those providing services are trained in 
trauma-informed approaches to avoid re-traumatizing individuals in vulnerable 
situations. 

o Foster Care Systems: Coordinate with child welfare agencies to ensure foster 
youth are safe and have the support they need, including reunification with their 
foster families if separated. 



35 
 

o Homeless Shelters and Services: Work with local shelters, housing authorities, 
and NGOs that specialize in homelessness to ensure that homeless individuals 
receive timely assistance. 

 

5. Communication Plan: within 5 calendar days following an emergency 

• Internal Communication: 
o Use the school’s existing communication channels (e.g., Microsoft 360 email, 

RingCentral or Personal cell text alerts, website, social media) to provide updates. 
o Establish a hotline or helpdesk for technical and academic support. 
o Regular virtual meetings via Teams or RingCentral with staff to ensure everyone 

is informed and aligned. 
• External Communication:  

o Inform parents and guardians weekly about any changes to the school schedule or 
learning modalities (remote, hybrid, in-person). 

o Use the school’s existing communication channels (e.g., Microsoft 360 email, 
RingCentral or website, social media) to provide updates daily of changes. 

o Establish a hotline or helpdesk for technical and academic support. 
o Provide clear instructions on how families can access learning materials and 

participate in learning activities. 
o Ensure messages are translated and accessible for non-English-speaking families, 

as needed. 

 

6. Educational Continuity Strategies: within 10 instructional days following the 
emergency. 

• Remote Learning: 
o Leverage digital platforms (e.g., Google Classroom, Zoom, Microsoft Teams) for 

remote learning. 
o The school maintains an active account with Imagine Learning (Edgenuity) that 

will facilitate the online lessons. 
o Develop engaging lessons that accommodate diverse learning needs, including 

differentiated assignments and resources. 
• Hybrid Learning Model: 

o Some students are learning in-person and others remotely ensure hybrid learning 
strategies support essential learning and make standards-aligned learning 
objectives achievable. 

o Utilize live-streamed lessons, recorded videos, and assignments uploaded to 
learning management systems. 

o Utilize existing curriculum from the school’s Personalized Learning program. 

 



36 
 

• Instructional Materials: 
o Ensure students have access to textbooks, online resources, and supplemental 

learning materials. 
o Offer physical delivery of materials for students without internet access. 

• Assessment and Feedback: 
o Regular formative assessments (quizzes, discussion posts, assignments) to 

monitor student progress. 
o Provide timely and constructive feedback on student work. 
o Ensure that assessments are accessible and equitable for all students. 

 

7. Equity and Accessibility: 

• Device and Internet Access: 
o Survey families to identify students who need technology (computers/tablets) or 

internet access. 
o Fresno EOC IT department to help provide accessibility of devices and hotspots 

to students in need. 
o Provide written guides and training for students and parents to navigate digital 

platforms. 
• Support for Students with Disabilities: 

o Ensure that students with disabilities have access to necessary accommodations, 
such as speech-to-text software, visual aids, and specialized instructional support. 

o Collaborate with special education teams to offer remote services, including 
virtual speech therapy, counseling, and IEP meetings. 

• Language Support: 
o Offer resources in multiple languages for families who need them. 
o Provide bilingual support staff or translators during virtual parent-teacher 

conferences or instructional sessions. 
• Support for Homeless and Foster Youth: 

o Provide support staff during instructional sessions. 

 

8. Professional Development: 

• Technology Training: 
o Provide teachers with training on digital tools for remote teaching, including 

Learning Management Systems (LMS), virtual meeting tools, and interactive 
learning apps. 

o Conduct periodic workshops to refresh skills on teaching in a hybrid or fully 
virtual environment. 

 



37 
 

• Well-being Support for Staff: 
o Offer training on maintaining work-life balance and supporting mental health 

during times of stress. 
o Provide opportunities for staff to share best practices and seek support from 

colleagues. 

 

9. Monitoring and Evaluation: 

• Continuous Improvement: 
o Regularly assess the effectiveness of the instructional delivery methods through 

feedback from students, teachers, and families. 
o Conduct surveys to measure student engagement, academic progress, and 

satisfaction with remote learning experiences. 
o Make adjustments as necessary to improve instructional quality and student 

outcomes. 
• Student Progress Monitoring: 

o Track student attendance and engagement in online learning and in-person 
learning. 

o Identify students who are falling behind and provide targeted interventions (e.g., 
tutoring, small-group instruction, virtual office hours). 

• Technical Support Monitoring: 
o Track the number of technical issues and resolution times to ensure smooth 

functioning of digital learning platforms. 

 

10. Contingency Planning: 

• Emergencies and Natural Disasters (e.g., Wildfires, Earthquakes, Power Outages): 
o Establish procedures for evacuations and alternative methods for continuing 

education if physical infrastructure is damaged (e.g., backup power, alternate 
work locations). 

 SOUL is under Fresno EOC, which has numerous programs. SOUL will 
continue to operate through Fresno EOC buildings or programs. 

o Maintain relationships with local emergency management to get up-to-date 
information during crises. 

• Long-Term School Closure: 
o Extended learning opportunities (e.g., summer programs, after-school support) 

when in-person learning resumes. 
o Continuous outreach will be offered to families to ensure students are supported 

during any extended absence from school. 

 



38 
 

 
 

11. Return to Site-based Learning 

• Conditions that must be met prior to returning from the disruption. 
o Power and utilities functioning 
o Access to safe and clean water 
o Campus free from hazards 
o Healthy air quality 
o Internet fiber lines connected and functioning. 

 

12. Conclusion: 

The Instructional Continuity Plan ensures that the school community remains resilient and 
adaptable in the face of disruption. With a focus on communication, equity, accessibility, and 
continuous improvement, this plan helps provide an uninterrupted and equitable learning 
experience for all students. 

 



 

39 
 

 
 
                   SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
Recommended Action  
  
The information presented below is intended to keep the Board apprised of SOUL’s Principal 
Report for the month of February. 
 
 Background  
  
The Principal report is meant to advise the governing Council of items that occurred during 
the month of February and new items currently in development.  In addition, SOUL 
enrollment fluctuates throughout the year.  Data gathered once a month is presented to the 
Governing Council at each meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact  
 
Action on this agenda item will have no fiscal impact. 

 
Conclusion  
 
SOUL’s Principal Report reflects information for the month of March 2025.   

 
 
 

Date: April 8, 2025 Program: School of Unlimited Learning  

Agenda Item #: 7 Director:  Dion Varnado 

Subject: Principal Report   Officer:    Jack Lazzarini  



PAGE 40 
 

S C H O O L  O F  U N L I M I T E D  L E A R N I N G  
P R I N C I P A L ’ S  R E P O R T |  M a r c h  2 0 2 5  

C l a s s r o o m  B a s e d -  2 9   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

10

6

5

0 5 10 15

9TH GRADE

10TH GRADE

11TH GRADE

12TH GRADE 

Classroom Based Students by 
Grade

6

20

3

BLACK OR AFRICAN 
AMERICAN

HISPANIC OR LATINO WHITE

Classroom Based Students by Race 

22

7

0 10 20 30

HISPANIC 

NON-HISPANIC 

Classroom Based
Students by Ethnicity 

1 1

17

9

1

Classroom Based Students by Residence 

27

7

SOCIO-ECONOMICALLY 
DISADVANTAGED

SPECIAL EDUCATION 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Classroom Based
Reported Program

1514

Classroom Based Students 
by Gender

Male Female



PAGE 41 
 

S C H O O L  O F  U N L I M I T E D  L E A R N I N G  
P R I N C I P A L ’ S  R E P O R T |  M a r c h  2 0 2 5  

P e r s o n a l i z e d  L e a r n i n g -  1 6 4   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

13

32

61

58

9TH GRADE

10TH GRADE

11TH GRADE

12TH GRADE 

Personalized Learning Students 
by Grade 

2

8

1

144

1

1

7

0 100 200

AMERICAN …

BLACK OR …

FILIPINO

HISPANIC OR …

HMONG

OTHER ASIAN

WHITE

Personalized Learning 
Students by Reported 

Programs

2

8

1

144

1

1

7

0 50 100 150 200

AMERICAN INDIAN OR ALASKA 
NATIVE

BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN

FILIPINO

HISPANIC OR LATINO

HMONG

OTHER ASIAN

WHITE

Personalized Learning Students by Race 

5

135

23

1

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

FOSTER FAMILY HOME OR KINSHIP 
PLACEMENT 

PERMANENT HOUSING 

TEMPORARILY DOUBLED OR TRIPLED UP 

TEMPORARY SHELTER - IN A SHELTER

Personalized Learning Students by Residence 

154

22

HISPANIC NON-HISPANIC 

Personalized Learning by Ethnicity

77

87

Personalized Learning Students 
by Gender 

Male Female


	1.  April Agenda 2025
	2. Community Action Promise
	3.  soul gc minutes   3-11-2025
	GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING
	MINUTES


	4.  SOUL's School Safety School Plan & Instructional Continuity Plan Agenda Cover
	Recommended Action
	Conclusion

	5.  2025-2026 Safe School Plan Final
	Fresno Unified School
	Comprehensive Safe School Plan
	(Education Code Section 32280-32288)
	At School of Unlimited Learning
	CDS Code
	10-62166-1030642
	From: 2025 TO 2026
	Board of Education
	Interim Superintendent of Schools
	District Manager II

	FIRSTAID
	CPR/AED
	Expiration
	CPR PRECAUTIONS
	Fresno Unified School District
	Phases of a Pandemic

	PHONE TREE
	Recommendations and Assurances

	6.  signature page
	7.  Instructional Continuity Plan 2025
	School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL)
	Instructional Continuity Plan
	1. Overview and Objectives:
	2. Roles and Responsibilities:
	3. Support for Pupils’ Social-Emotional and Mental Health
	 Creating a Safe, Supportive Environment
	o Physical Safety: Ensure that the physical environment is secure and comforting. This includes making classrooms or shelters feel as calm and welcoming as possible, with familiar routines and comforting items (like soft toys, blankets, or calming vis...
	o Emotional Safety: Establish a space where pupils feel they can express their emotions without fear of judgment. Encourage an open-door policy for pupils to approach trusted adults when they feel upset.
	 Acknowledge and Validate Feelings
	o Normalize Emotions: Let pupils know that it is okay to feel sad, scared, angry, or confused after a natural disaster. Reassure them that their feelings are normal and valid, and they are not alone in feeling this way.
	o Encourage Open Expression: Give pupils opportunities to talk about their feelings. This can be through class discussions, one-on-one conversations, or creative outlets like drawing or journaling. Using art, music, or drama can be helpful for pupils ...
	 Provide Consistent Routines
	o Maintain Familiarity: Pupils find comfort in routine, so try to maintain as much of the normal school routine as possible, even if learning has to happen in a temporary setting or remotely. Consistent schedules and predictable activities can help th...
	o Small Goals: Help pupils set small, achievable goals to help them regain a sense of control, like completing a project, doing a quick exercise, or simply having a "feel-good" task to look forward to each day.
	 Active Listening and Empathy
	o Listen Actively: Be present when pupils express their concerns or fears. Reflect on what they say to show that you understand and empathize. For example, "It sounds like you’re feeling really worried about your home. That makes sense."
	o Comfort and Reassure: Provide physical comfort (such as a comforting touch, when appropriate), along with verbal reassurance that it is okay to be upset and that things will eventually get better.
	 Promote Peer Support
	o Peer Mentoring: Encourage pupils to look out for one another. Some pupils may feel more comfortable talking to their peers than to adults. Encourage positive social interactions, teamwork, and support systems among classmates.
	o Buddy Systems: Pair pupils up with a buddy to check in on each other, helping them feel less isolated.
	 Address Trauma Through Age-Appropriate Conversations
	o Age-Appropriate Information: Provide pupils with information about the disaster in a way they can understand. Use simple, clear, and age-appropriate language to explain what happened, why it happened, and what steps are being taken to keep them safe.
	o Answer Questions: Allow pupils to ask questions and provide honest, clear, and reassuring answers. If you do not have an answer, let them know you will try to find one together.
	 Incorporate Stress-Relief Activities
	o Mindfulness and Relaxation Exercises: Help pupils manage stress by guiding them through breathing exercises, mindfulness practices, or short relaxation activities. These can help calm the body and mind and teach students strategies for handling anxi...
	o Physical Activity: Encourage regular movement and physical activity to help release pent-up stress. This could be through games, exercises, or even simple stretching activities.
	  Provide Access to Counseling Services
	o School Counselors: Will be available for one-on-one support. Counselors can provide tailored emotional support, offer coping strategies, and help pupils process trauma.
	o Community Resources: Provide families with information on local mental health services and counselors. Ensure that children who may need more intensive help are connected with appropriate support.
	 Encourage Family and Community Connection
	o Strengthen Family Bonds: Encourage pupils to talk with their families about how they are feeling and to lean on each other for support. Let families know about resources available to them, such as counseling services, community support groups, or he...
	o Build Community Networks: Foster a sense of community by encouraging pupils and families to engage with one another. This could involve volunteering, local support networks, or simply reaching out to neighbors.
	 Follow Up and Monitor Long-Term Effects
	o Check-In Regularly: Social-emotional needs may persist even after the immediate impact of the disaster has passed. Continue to check in with students, especially if they show signs of prolonged distress, such as withdrawal, difficulty concentrating,...
	o Reassure Over Time: Disasters can have long-term emotional effects. It is important to reassure pupils over time that they are safe, and that recovery is a process. Offer ongoing support as needed and give them opportunities to talk about their feel...
	5. Communication Plan: within 5 calendar days following an emergency
	6. Educational Continuity Strategies: within 10 instructional days following the emergency.
	7. Equity and Accessibility:
	8. Professional Development:
	9. Monitoring and Evaluation:
	10. Contingency Planning:
	11. Return to Site-based Learning
	 Conditions that must be met prior to returning from the disruption.
	o Power and utilities functioning
	o Access to safe and clean water
	o Campus free from hazards
	o Healthy air quality
	o Internet fiber lines connected and functioning.
	12. Conclusion:

	8.  Principal Report  Agenda Cover
	Recommended Action
	Conclusion

	9.  March 2025 Prinicipal's Report

